Marﬁha Fer usonBO McKeown
oute Two, Box 352
Hood River, Oregon Feb. 10, 1953

The Yakima Herald
Yaklma, Oregon

Dear Sirs:

May I please order a couple of coples of your paper
for February 3, 19537

Chief Thompson and his wife, at Celllo, showed me

the touching article on the Wanapums, River People, by

Cligk Relander.

The Celilo Indians know the Wanapums and share their
concern about the future of the River Indians.

Thank you for presenting their problem so well.
Sincerely,

e




Martha Ferguson McKeown
Route Two, Box 352 Feb. 14, 1953
Hood River, Oregon

Mr. Click Relander
Route 3 Box 146
Yakima, Wash.

Dear Mr. Relander:

Thank you for the sbory of Mrs. Whiz. We'll take
Chief Thompson his copy this week. I'm having a sort of
"Bundles for Celilo" project here and am going up with
children's clothes soon.

The Thompson's story of the Wy-ams, that they have
been glving me, and our family friendship with displaced
Indians from the Bonneville pool has deepened our concern
for all of these non-reservation Indians.

I've read a little about your Wanapums, and I'm
dellighted to know of the manmuscript. It is a story that
should be preserved. Smowhala hasn't been given his rightful
place. Once in awhile there 1s a reference that has made
us feel hils importance. I can recall readling that the Indians
consldered him a greater leader than Chief Joseph.

I've admired the work of the late L.V. McWhorter. and
I'm certainly glad to know of your plans for Fort Simcoe.
We have quite an excellent Indian library of our own and
I've done a good bit of research in Washington D.C. and
at the Heye Foundation in New York. I'll certalnly be glad
to help in any way I can.

Dr. Griffith is working on the story of old Fort
Dalles. He's collecting source material and would be an
excellent person to work with you. I have the Lang library
here (they were an old Dalles famlly, cousins of James
Nesmith.) My grandfather, Albert Ferguson, was sheriff of
Wasco County in the 1860's. In recent years my husband has
taken a great many photographs of Indians in this area.

D14 you know that some Portland attorneys have taken
the case of the Celilo Indians on a contingency basis? They
are working hard; Mr. Easley has been to Washington D.C.
to flle claims in their behalf; and they have been here
working in my files.

I know how your Wanapums have felt about law suits
and treaties. But I've met their Chief at Celilo. Mrs.
Thompson says," a great man but stuttery." The Thompsoné
have been there to worship with them. They have a similar
problem. Are they being given legal protection?

My father worked hard to try and get homes when the
Celilo nal destroyed the Celilo village. They were prom-
ise ney were never bullt. Over fifty families lost
thelr homes in the backwater from Bonnfi\gille Dam. Nothing
has been done for them.

Chlef Thompson says,"The Almighty took a long time
to make this place." Salmon and the religious significance
can't be measured in dollars. Our Indian friends have no
trailning for living under our economy. Nor 1s anyone find-
ing the answer to what they will eat when the salmon are
gone. '

We'd 1like to meet you. If you are coming our way pleage
let us know. Sumosrs? a&b&i,j7zaz’ : A




Martha Ferguson McKeown

Route Two, Box 352
Hood River, Oregon March 18, 1953

Dear Mr. Relander,

I'm sorry we can't be there for the field day on March
22, but I'm speaking the following day for the Portland Women's
Research lumcheon meeting. The topic is Indians. I'm telling
of treaties and of the Wanapums who did not make peace because
they had never made war, and of the home folk at Celilo.

I'm a former state D.,A.R. regent and have found that
our Oregon D.A.R.s are doing a great deal to help at Celilo.

I'm wondering if the Washington state society might not also

help you with the Wanapums. Last year the D.A.R.S sent Christ-
mas gifts to Celilo. They have sent about $150 worth of groceries
since and a couple of car loads of used clothing. You have a
D.A.,R. chapter in Yakima and through that group you might be ablg
to present the problem to the state organization. Right now we
have some gquilts that have come from friends, and I'm to take

up food and clothing on my next trip to Celilo.

Thank you so very much for the copy of the Centennial
Edition of your paper. Also, I've greatly enjoyed the clippings.
You write very wunusual stories. I'm certainly glad to know
that you are preserving your material in a manmscript.

The death of their old leader is really a beautiful
piece of writing. He stands out as a great example of free
enterprise . There is a quality in some of these old Indians that
is worthy of preservation.
Thank you for asking us to join you. Someday we hope
to visit the site of old Fort Simcoe.
Sincerely,

Voo e, g




Martha Ferguson McKeown

Route Two, Box 352 July 6, 1953
Hood River, Oregon

Dear Mr. and Mrs. Relander,

We've been watching the Indian situation rather closely,
and sent pictures and a statement to the White House and
to the recent hearing.

The dam 1s being built and the problem now is to
provide as best we can for the non-reservation Indians
3iving in the Gorge. At least they are now on the list.
Although at the bottom and to receive whet is left over from
the payments to the larger groups.

One of our Celilo friends, Tom F¥ank Yallup, died
under very sad circumséances. I was up to see the Welfare
people in The Dalles and also went to Portland about several
of the cases. Chief Thompson and Charley Quittoken have their
old age assistance checks, several of the wedbws are gettimg
state aid, and a few others are receiving grocery orders,
but those are cases when a man young enough to work is
physically disabled.

Recently we had Colonel Lipscomb and Marshall Dana
spend a day with us at Celilo and goisg over records here
in our home. Colonel Lipscomb has a job to do, and a long
background in army construction projects, but he is south-~
ern, had a negro mammy and- was extremely kind to the -
Indians he met. Mri Dana, during his years at the Journal
did quite a bit of writing about the problems of the river
Indians. The trip was made off the record and the Colonel
plans to go with us again. He was in some of the old homes
between the river and the highway, and seems eager to
understand the problems of these people.

But there are a great many families wintering at
Celilo that have no tribal ties of any sort. They do not
belong to the river families many are Nez Perce,others are
from Yakima families who do not inherit there. Apparently
they are just going to be displaced persons as were our
river families in the Bomnneville pool. I can't feature
the tribes doing anything for them and they are not related
to the Wy-am-pums or the other folk who have always lived
in the Gorge.

There is a book I want you to read. I borrowed a copy
from the local library and know it contains information
you should have about your Piutes. It is called-- Harney
County, Oregon, and It's Range Land, by George Francls Brim-
low, published by Binfords.

I gave a talk last Sunday on River Indians for the
Christian Church people who sponsor the White Swan Mission,
and next week we are taking a couple of their clergymen to
Celilo.

Meanwhile, I'm trying to keep my Macmillan editor
happy. I'm hoping to do something with the Cascades-Celilo
material sameday, but right now I'm still struggling with
the piloneer manuscript.

Sincerely,
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Martha Ferguson McKeown
Route Two, Box 352
Hood River, Oregon Aug. 24, 1953

Dear Click Relander,

We have many things to tell you about the Celilo
situatlon= also a book 1s here walting to be mailed.
Now I'll Just keep it until you and your wife come.

I know she must be very busy getting ready far the
trip-- but I'm hoping you can spend a might here between
now and then. We have extra room, food on hand, a hearty
welcome=- and quantlities of Indlan material you will want
to see. So-- please come along. Youf m¥y know the valley--
we are six miles south of towyg in the Odell section, beyond
Tucker Bridge. Probably the easlest way to find us 1ls to come
out the Loup to Odell, get directions to find Wy-east High
School, and then come four houses north. Our son lives
next door. Our phone number is Odell 3444, if you phone
from tewn we'll make the directlions more specific. If we
don't answer call David McKeown, Odell 3440. We plan to
be in Portland September 4, but will be here the rest of
the tlme.

I'm goigg to stop writing to you and get a note off
to Chief Thompson telling him of your planned visit. I've
already told them of your plan but want to be very sure
that they ungerstand you are coming now.

We do look forward to your visit. Arch and I are
very eager to tell you about our Indian material here.
Let us know when you can come, so we'll be sure and be
here. But 1if you can't give us any warning-- come anyway,
for if we aren' t here we'll be back in a short time. I'm
often at my son's next door. There 1s a two year old grand-
daughter there and another baby 1s expected withlin a few
weeks. Otherwise, I'm heme.

Slncerely,

;z;adxiﬁﬂu_ /%;165_451;4,1A“
- ;




Martha Ferguson McKeown

Route T'wo, Box 352 ;
Hood River, Oregon Sept. 12, 1953

Dear Click Relanger,

The McKeowns are still regretful that you couldn't spend
more time with us. Please plan on staylng hereéwhen you next come
this way. We have much to tell you of the Wy-am-pum background.
They are the o0ld originals and do not feel at all close to the
Klickiatats-- Wy-am means the echo of the water agalnst the
rocks, Chief says the river people have more music (vowels)
while the Klickitats souhd like wild geese. They have been
down to explain the recent fish controversy--~ thelr side 1is
much more colorful than you'd guess from the news coverage.
We've been up for a day with them. I've had Engineers here for
a day and spent another one with them in Portland-=- no, I
didn't take the Job because I feel that they aren't setting
up a program that includes enough of the non-reservation people.
I had a chance to talk to Colonel Lipscomb about our old folk
down at Hood River and White Salmon and the Wan-a-pums. We
have a comparable situation-- and I'm ever so proud of Lorrailne
for getting it before the publlic. -

I told Chief it was very important to tell you about
the worshlp pole, the meaning of hls bird, and also the
language. Alice Slim Jim Charley and her brother are the last
ones to speak the tongue of the old Dog River people ( they have
a sister but she's at Warm Springs.) Alice's Yakima husband
couldn't understand 1t and made her speak his language.

The o0ld blind Indian up Rattlesnake Creek above Husum
speaks st1ll another tongue. I haven't your gift for that sort
of thing-- but will do all I can to get the background and
pave the way with introductions. It looks to me as though
you are doing a truly distinctive Job there-- in years to
come 1t will increase 1in value.

4 cousin died in Portland and I'm dashing off for a few
daya. g
Arch and David are simply amazed at the way you have captu
ed our Chief. It is a wonderful llkeness. 4lso, you have won
theilr falth and frédndship-- we've had a real talk about you
and he has promised to gilve you-the story of thelir religion.

I want you to weave the Wy-am-pum background in with the other,
and we'll also see what we can get from these others down thils
waye. They are distinctive from the éthers, and 1t may be of
very great service to them for us to be able to prove it.

With the best of wishes to you,




Martha Ferguson McKeown
Route Two, Box 352
Hood River, Oregon Feb. 24, 1954

Dear Click Relander,

I never saw anything so wonderfull The bust 1is our chlef,
without any appings, except the bralds linking him to the past
with the str%ﬁth of iron chains. He 1s the greatest person I have
ever knowne. didn't dream that anyone could capture what I see in
his face, but you have hls whole tragic, patient story there.

I hasten to explain that your letter, plectures,and the report,
(Ehdt I want to discuss with you in detall) arrived at the ranch in
three feet of snow. Meanwhile I was in town with Miss Lang, who has
been hovering between life and death until the last few days, when
she seems a bit stronger. Also, we've been having consultations about
our son, who was slated for a spinal fuslion and four months in 8 cast
until they dlscovered he has rheumatold arthritls and the* can't
operate. Meanwhlle the hired man was rushed to tie Veteran's Hospltal
for a brain tumor operation, and it was discovered his wife, who 1s
having a fourth baby in April, has T.B. She is being admitted to The
Dalles hospital taday. He 1ls not expected to 1live =gix" months. The
tenant house has had to be fumigated, children placed in foster homes,
etc. etec. Talk about this simplé couniry life. And I still have two
chapters to go on my book!

I'm back home, doigg-a few letters, and then I ve got to hide out
and get it finished. But when the pressure eases I'11l write. We want you
and Lorraine to come down for a week end, we'd 1like to hear of her
trip ard we have a lot to go over with you.

Meanwhile~ I've hcard from the Interior and Insular Affairs Committ-
ce. THey are using our photostats and pictures in their present invest-
igation. I had a long wire from the Assoclatlon on Indian Affadrs and
sent thém a lot of materlal. I also included the Wan~-a-pums 1in the
problem and guggested they ask you about them.

We've had Gelilo folk here and a lot of letters. I've written
explaining I can't come up for awhile. I asked Chief to give you all
the information he could. He has talked to me about their faith, and
5 believe he'd tell you now. With your gift for frf\yndship and lang-
uages, I'm convinced you could do a wonderful Job on the languages
and religlons of all the river people. Won't you please go on with it,
and then when we see you, I might be able to suggest some more leads.
For instarue, I believe qharley Quittoken's mother was a Wan-a-pum. I
hope you'll talk to him, he's rather deaf but he understands English
fairly well, and he and hls wife have been rnoted for thelr care and
nursing of the old people on both sides the river. Last time I was
there thej had Chief Yallup from Rock Creek staylng with them.

We nave gotten Alice Slim Jim Charley down off{ the mountain out
of the snow, and into a spot where she can have wood and groceries.

I want you to meet her. She 1s the last of the family living here in
the valley. She speaks a distinctive tongue. I'd like to give you what
help I can in finding the 0ld people so that you can go on wilth this
study and make comparlsons.

Come spring= and an easlng of the pressure here- I'd 1ike to go
over it with you. That bust needs to be done in bronze. It's the story
of all the river people. Isn't there someway to finance 1t? Have you
talked to Clifford Dolph? Surel}y there is a grant of somékind available.
We'll be writing again . Meanwhile, please go on with your dictlon-
ary of all of the river people. I can assure you I'll help in any
way I can.

Arch sends hls warmest greetings. He and David are as touched

as I am by the sklll and understanding of your vwork.
With admiraiion, 2 Z M




Martha Ferguson McKeown

Route T'wo, Box 352
Hood River, Oregon April 21, 1954

Dear Click Relander,

I do hope I'1l be seeing you and Lauralne at Celilo
on Sunday. Arch is too sick to attend the salmon feast, but
I'm going up with Miss Allen again.

We're ve:ggraterul for the copies of your stories, I'm
looklng forwa to talking with you about them. You are doing
a wonderful Job of presenting these psople and thelr problems
to your readerse.

I've been told that Charley Quittoken's mother was a
Wan-a=-pum. You recall my saying that hls would be the face
I'd choose to represent the River people. His name does not
appear on any tribal roll. His father and grandfather were
the friendly Indians with the dugout canoe who helped the
"Whoa-Haws" ford the Deschutes.

Don't you think Chief Thompson and his people do have
definite and provable treaty claims at Celilo? The Middle
Oregon Treaty of 1855 establishes the boundarles clearly.

The Umatillas are above Willow @reek. The Yakimas are on the
north shore. The Middle Oregon people retained their rights

at the fisheries although they ceded thelir land. The descendants
of elght chiefs did not sign the fraudulant Huntington Treaty
in 1865 becmmse they were not on the reservation at that time.
The Chief 1s a nephew of Séecketll who signed the Middle
Oregon Treaty of 1855 and then lost his ldfe on a scouting
trip for the soldiers at Fort Dalless I'm not sure, if we

come right down to technicalities and eliminate the welaims
established by attorneys and trilbal delagations, that we
won't find that these non=reservation folk, who have always
lived within the boundmmies of the area c¢fled by the Middle
Oregon Treaty, don't have the strongest claim of all.

Ig-- and when-- I get my family over their problems
and the ploneer book out of the way, Abch and I want to share
some of the things we've found with you and Laurains.

Flora sald when I was leaving today,"You think Mr.
Click be here for Sunday?™ I went up today with a box of
apples we had put in cold storage so he'd have fresh fruilt
to bless during the ceremony. Last year the women walked for
miles and only found a halff dishpan full of roots. FPoor old
Chief is really in the bite of the rope. He was slck 1in bed
when I got there, but when I put a tweed suit I'd gleaned
on the bed beside him, he began to lmprove. He 1s very
happy about the new kitchen. It's touching to think of the
sacrifices and the work that they are putting into it now.

Tell Lauraine we're eager to heaff about her trip.

Sincerely,

e s




Martha Ferguson McKeown

Route T'wo, Box 352 '
Hood River, Oregon May 18, 1954

Dear Click Relander,

I'm 1Cng owing you alletter. But thils is the first day
I've been at a desk for weeks . As you know, Arch has had
more than his share of troubles with his legs, but we've
never suspected a heart condition along with the rest.

Shortly after the Celllo salmon feast he had a drsadful
heart attack. Fortunately David and I were both here to rush
him to the hospital. I stayed right there for the first twenty-
four hours, then came ten days when they sald he had a fifty-fifity
chance, and the yo folk and I took turns being -near-by. He's
now moved to our home, and 1s in the big corner room upstairs
next to my study. It 1s thromboslis with at least three months
of complete rest. »

But David 1s putting in an elevator. Later, we hope to
get him down in the yard. My agent wrltes most enocouragingly
about the historical novel. I'm definitely on the home stretch,
and then I have a hunch that I can do some Indian things too.

Archle's mind is clear, he has managed to keep his sense
of humor. We plan to spend all the time we can together and
still allow for me going on with my writing. When I need to
make research trips David and out daughber-in-law will look after
Arch.

I feel 1ike we're really getting our second wind. Right now
the blg Job 1s to finish MOUNTAINS AHEAD. Because the Hawthoone
trilogy was handled 1n the first person, the folk in New York
felt it was very lmpdrtant for me to branch away from blography
and do an adult book completely on my own. Since I work at
free-lancing as a Job, and have to make money at it, I've nat-
urally been very careful to be cooperative and follow suggestions.
My agent wanted me to do a specific type of book that would appeal
to a natlonal audlence. It has probbbly been good discipline but
I'1l be glad to branch out into other things later. I used to do
features for newspapers, etc. and sold some on the Celilo situation
but because Uncle Mont was so old I had to work against time.

And since then we've had more than ou¥ share of illness. However,
Arch 1s glving me loads of encouragement and maybe I'll do more
and better work while I'm a recluse. Of course, it is going to
take a lot of time looking after him and keeping him happy.I'm
delighted though to find that he's showing his old interest in
books. Looks llke we can budld a wonderfully good life here
within specific limipatlons and maybe my free-lancing will help
answer a lot of problems. My Macmillan editor was quite specifiec
when he was out last year about Indian bookqfﬁf‘a reglonal nature,
my agent shows slgns of a different attitude but he stressed the
need offft ing the present Job soon.

I think you are doing a grand Job with your Indian stories
and I can assure you that I'mm looking forward to Drummers and
Dreamers with real anticlpation. Later, I want to talk to you
about the enduring memorlal to Chief Thompson and the fishing
folk.

I too share your feeling about John Whiz. None of the old




Wy-ams can read or write. They don't trust him, know he
exploits them, and still they feel they neecd him. He even
charges them for writing letters at times, and of ten borrows
from folk who think they are helping the others. I understand
he even hopes to succeed Chief Thompson!

Did you notice how the old Indians were 1inslde during the
salmon feast worshiping while the reservation folk were much
in evidence around the stick-game? Puck Hyalh Toot and Chief
Yallup were in there beside .Chlef Thompson but the Yakima
council members, while vocal about thelr shrine in Washington,
didn't deem at all concerned about the signiflicance of the
worship service.

Someday, when we have made a bit more progress here
we do want you and Lorraine to visit us. Please tell her I
was sorry not to see her, but Miss Allen and I blamed ourselves
for losing you and I was amused when you wrote expressing
your regret. I never saw such a mob. The Wy-ams are owlng
more grogery bills than ever. Flora used to have to s?end all
of her cherry-picking money on the salmon feast debt.

Soncerely, :




Martha Ferguson McKeown

Route T'wo, Box 101
Hood River, Oregon July 27, 1954

Dear Click and Lorraine,

Thanks ever so much for the Wanapum story. You are
dolng a wonderful Job of presenting the problems of the
River People. We are eager to see you and talk more about it.

Archle 1s better and we read your letter with much
antdcipation. This 1s our situation, some of his family
will be here on August 17 and I know they won't be staying
for more than a couple of days.
We have nothing scheduled for the week of August 21.

I'm at long last trying to get back to work again, but I start
early and pub in the morning hours. &s you know the house 1is
blg, I have a neighbor who comesiin ogce a week and cleans--
when she 1sn't working at the packing house. We have a couple
of empty guest rooms, a basement work room ( with overhead
light that might do for Click) a garage with better light and
lots of space, a table out in back,shut in by trees,and a
a porch that Arch also thinks would do for your work on the
head.

We truly want you to plan on staying and working here.
I'1l promise not to do extras. There are places here where
you could have privacy to work with clay. Lorranie can
browse in our books or call on her distant kin, or do
anything else she wants to. When we have all this vacant
space, we'd like to have you use it. &rch and I go to the
store about once a week and come home to stock the deep
freeze and wield a can opene#. I'll promise not to do extras
for I'm well aware of how impossible it is to visit during
working hours.

However, we'll plan when you get here to see the Mansers.
And also to share a bkt of our valley. Your room will be
ready when you get here, we'll plck your work spot, and rung
down our Allce. She was here day before yesterday to have me
write a letter. From here she was going gleaning in a patch
of over-ripe berries. But I'll surely see her before then
or if not we'll go along and vouch for you on your first trip.
Allce has a wonderful face, Arch has a good many plctures
here, and I'm sure I can get across to her the importance of
her dolng thls. She gets confused unless someone she knows
explains things very slowly. But if you get her to feeling
that she knows you, she can understand a lot of English. It
1s really hard to meet her unless you know where to go for
she spends her summers up on the mountain. But once we locate
her she'll come down to the foot of the hill. Arch and I have
often picked her up there for trips to Celilo.

Let us know when you are coming so we'll be here. Or-
if we are making one of our periodic trips to town our
son and his wife, who live next door, will know where we are.
The week of the 21st of August 1s marked off for the Relanders
and work. Your bed, a work place, and snacks when you want
them , will be ready.

Best wishes to you both,




Martha Fer usmi:ao McKeown
Route Two, Box 352
Hood River, Oregon Sept. 18, 1954

Dear Click Relander,

I've been reading your notes that you left for
me and have found them ever so Interesting. In fact,
I‘ve had them downstalrs for I've been there most of
the time.--- In addition to a house full of folk I've been
in Portland, our hired man died there and we've been help-
ing the wldow and her four children get relocated.

Consequently, I didn't find your folder until your
letter came. It was left on that shelf beslde my desk.
We'll get it off to you in the morning.

I still haven't had any time to look for the Lang
report but I'll try to get it off to you soon.

Did we show you and Lorraine Grandfather Ferguson's
flag with 32 stars? He used 1t in early Oregon and I have
it here at the house. It 1s very frall but in perfect conditilo
Would you like to have a glossy of 1t? I could get Arch to
take a pleture when he takes one of the chair and then
you could see the detaill of how it was made. I presume
it was like the one that flew over Fort Simcoe. Thanks
for the story. That Archer materlial 1s a treasure and
you've certainly presented it well.

I don't know whether I told you that Grandfather
Febguson crossed Fremont Pass in the gold rush of 49 and
came to Oregon in 'S0. He located at Salem and then left
there for The Dalles, taking the first planing mill into
eastern Oregon.( They had quite a time getting it portaged
around the Cascades.) He was an early sheriff of Wasco
County and a Grand Master of the Masfonic lodge. He
carried our flag of 32 stars on many trips, particularly
when he was organizing new lodges.

Mrs. Moore, Alice's friend in town, called to say that
she'd been in to tell her about the head. She sald Allce
is ever so proud of it. Mrs. Moore plus the rest of the
offisers in the Historical Soclety are golng to be here
for Monday afternoon and will stay for supper. Kelsle
Osbourne, secretary for the Oregon Tralls Association will
be here. Yesterday Archie's brother and his wife were here
for the day. Today Uncle Mont's wldow had an elghtleth
birthday. A nlece from Californla and her husband brought
their three children for a visit. I'm beginning to see why I
turn out more work when we're snowbound.

Arch gends greetings. He hasn't made any pictures for
awhile. But he'll get some negatlves off to you on that
Dalles furniture soon.

Sincerely,

%%%L°‘§i-h{§%7¢ﬁ::;uag_
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Nov. 21, 1954

Dear Click and Lorraine,

I'm so grateful for the copy of the Yale Catalogue. Arch and

I have both been checking through it and I keep checking names and
ltems to look up. In fact,I'm still hardly able to think in terms
of keeplng it, for I've had such fun since it came in prganizing
my own ploneer material better because I'd be returning it soon.
You couldn't have done anything we appreclate more or that we'll
find more useful. It is particularly valuable in getting complete
names and ldentifying the folk mentioned by last names only in the
ploneer Jjournals.

Do you have a copy of that little book Bunnell wrote, Legends
of the Klickitats? Binfords published it. Mr. Bunnell's school-
teacher wife, who 18 a friend of mine, cemnsorel it, but it still
has some good source material, for his people homesteads? near
Maryhill. I bought a copy and then find another among the Lang
things that I'd 1like to send up for you if you don't have 1t.

I'm particularly interested in your Yakima clipping for I
find that Alice Slim Jim Charley and Minnie Wesley Showaway, the
last of the Teninos living on the 7.4 acres, have both been taken
In recently. The whole situation 1s so confused and looks so bad
for them, for no money has been set aside for housing or rehabilitation,
that I'm not golng to advise them one way or the other.

When we went up with Colonel Moorhead and the Indian Bureau men,
the Colonel made it plain that he had been directed from Washington
to only pay the appraisal figure for the houses on the T+.4 acres.

The land belongs to ths government, there would be no payment when

it was transferred from one department to the other. Mr. Foster gfave
me to understand that he was trying to stép the transter until housing
was provided in another spot.

I was very sorry when Mr. Easley filed the suits as he did in
a Federal court. He has not kept in touch with the Indlans or with us
in recent weeks. I'd be much interested in knowlng what he would reply
to someone like you in regard to specific plans for his clients. Also,
are your Washington congressmen aware of the problems of the peopls
at Spear Fish and other spots along the Washington shore who will be
flooded out, were gilven public domain allotments ( non-tillable
mountain tops, etc.) in the Gorge”. Thousands of acres were set aside
for the non-reservation people then but no provision has been made to
protect them in this settlement. There 1s a rglter large settlement
at Spear Fish and the Indians tell me over fifty still live up the
Klickitat canyon.

No, I'm really baffled by the Chief's birthday. It wasn't very
many years-ago ( about three or four) when Chief asked us up to his
ninetleth birthfay. At that time he was prone to glve different ages.
Somedays, when he felt well, he was 874, other times when he was slck
he was way over a 90 mark. I don't think he knows, but if he wants a
hundredth birthday party on Dec. 15, I'm all for having 1t. When he
slngs French songs and tells me the stories of away back when,I think
he must be very close to it= but I don't see how we can do more tthan
Just presume he's right. ;

I don't know anything about Mrs. Corbett, but I may recognize her
when we meet. I think any record we get down is important. However,
Chlef makes no claim of ever having seen Stocketley. He has often told
me of his death, the scouting mission, etc.




I've been doing some rather serious thinking these last few
weeks about this business of writing. If you are published by one
of the national houses you write with a slant for the markets. I
know that a lot of Stewart Holbro#k's books are written because of
a suggestlon that a certain volume would fit into a list. Steve
McNell, who writes for the Post and is the mogt successful writer
I know from the standpoint of sales, writes tings that are amusing
but don't touch me 1ike a lot of the reglonal books. You work at
a Job, and write about your Wan-a-pums because they have a story
you have to tell-- and if you dldn‘t do it that story would never
be recorded. -

I showed my Macmillan editor a sampling of the Columbia Gorge
legends. He praised the way they were written, the plctures, stc.
ete. and said he hoped I'a lay them aslde and do historical fiction.
I still think I should try and get them together while Chief is here
to help me.

In fact, I'm still substituting part of each week. If I had a
regular cleaning woman and planned my time with care, I might be
able to write what I want to write if I took a regular Job next
year. I'm not so sure that the free-lancers are nearly as free as
it might appear on the surface.

Drummers and Dreamers is a proud and hdnest plece of work,
only slanted by your belief in your story.

Much as a 1like my Macmillan editor I don't go along with him
in enjoying Betty McDonald's Indians in The Egg and I. True, we all
s@e Indlans like thate. And then I remember how Chief crled when he
told me he could not even keep his little bird on the pole because
of the thronging invaders, both brown and white.

Max wittes that you are doing to be there on the 15th. We plan
to attend too. I want this hundredth (?) birthday party to be both
happy and memorable. :

And thanks again for the Yale Catalogue. The ploncer material is
now flled, Archle's Indian negatives and prints ditto, and I'm digging
through the Lang material in that little room off my study. Already,
I've come up with a lot of pletures taken in Tie Dalles 1in early days
that have no names on them. The Indians are in tribal regalia-- no
telling who we have. Next time you come this way, I'll have a lot to
ghow you. 'Twon't be long now till I unearth and send the Lang report
your way.

Sincerely,

e o




Nov.27, Lds4

Dear Cli&k Relander,

At lagt I've found the Lang regﬁgk- carefully filed in the wrong
holder as I'd suspected- Anyway, here 1t 1is.

4lso I find a plece of paper headed "STOCK WHITLEY" among Miss
Anne Lang's effects. She quoted Carson Maglker , by way of the Native Sons
Vol. 11 No's 8and 9. Carson Masker was my @randfather Ferguson's
deputy during the time he was sheriff in The Dalles and by great good
fortune he was also the jJanitor at the grade school when I £géarted
here at Odell. He told me many storles of Indian fights and Ploneer
days. His son llves near here, I'll see If he has anything on
those days 1n writing. The Sons.reference I can check next time I'm
in the Portland library.

I'1l Just Plck up a few lines now and get a real copy to you
later.- "0Old Stock Whitley was the most noble looking Indian I ever
saw. He was a large, portly man and always proferred the hand of
friendship on meeting you. He seemed to be an admirer of the white
race; when some of hils men in 1860 or 1861 murdered some white men
near Tygh Valley, Stock surrendered them and they were hanged at The
Dalles. (,Note , I think that is the hanging my uncles and Dad tried
to attend"{jgrandma Ferguson, switch in hand, Intercepted them and
changed thelr minds.) :

"Stock went with a squad of Warm Springs Indian scouts and did
good service with the sol rs. He lost his 1lete in the same action
In which Lieutenant Watson was killed. I have been told that Stock
requested to be burled with Watson, but do not know whether this was
done or not. It seems to me that an account in detall of the action
in which Lietenant Watson and Stock Whitley lost their lives, written
by some one who was present, would make a very readable article, as well
as a valuable acquisition to hlstory, and it 1s in hope to stir up
some of the survivors to action that I wrdte this article."

Then he goes 4n with another paragraph she has copled about the
fighting on Miller's Island and a bit of doggerel in Chinocok Jargon
about"Stock WWhitley."

There 1s another bit of information that also geems to click
in my memory with my Dad's storles of those dayse..

"Way-sike-nee~kum was war chief of the John Day and Rock Creek
Indilans. Kolwash was an o0ld Indian living in Tumwater, near Celilo.
Paulina was head of the Snakes. Nathan Olney, at one time sheriff of Wasco
County, was a brother-in-law of 0ld Stock Whitley, and was reputed to
be the best Indian fighter in Eastern Oregon.”

I'11 check more fully into the Maslker material bdth here and in
Portland. Hls son may have something written-- but I rather doubt it.

At least, this does give us a better 1dea of fact and date and also would
glve you something to check against your other sources.

As to news of the McKeowns. Arch 1is having a dreadful time with his
legs. I'm certalnly thankful that our young folk are near. We're getting
things organized for a rather confined life here. The sale of the Gre#sham
property went through which relieves us of a worry and means I'll have.
fewer trips to make down that way. One reason I wanted the Lang material
80 badly was that I realized I'd be more housebound as time goes on. It
probably 1s a good thing that.I seem to be able to do flectlonalized char-
acters for I can set them against a real historical background and cut
down on the time and money I spent on regsearch trips far afleld. However,
I suspect I'1ll still have to get this Indian - Columbig Gorge story off
my chests. I-am so sick about the fate of those friendly people who




chose the white man's road. I find that much of my material deals with
the scouts who served with our troops during the Indian Wars. I'm
ever so grateful to you for giving me those carbons for K‘m convinced
we can both share the same sources and do a better Job in.documenting
our material.
Aside from getting this Columbia Gorge material together-- someday=--

I'11 probably be turning toward historical fiction. I won't get a definite
reaction from Masmillan until my editor gets back from a -scouting trip
through the south. It 1s a case of my agent thinking I've done a good
plece of work ( which helps while I'm " sweating it out.") But Macmillan
g};ba every manuscript around to a-board of readers, both in and out
of New Yorke I can understand their attitute for publishing costs are
very hligh and natlonal promotion involves a big risk. Because Cecil
Scott " found me" and edited my other three, I've been notified that
there will be no decision until he gets back and handles things with
my agent.

Meanwhile, I'm having a lot of fun filing and substituting in the
local hilgh school.

Pleade give Lorraine our greetings. I hope we'll see you at
Celilo December 15.

Sincerely,

e O







Hood Rlver, Oregon
Feb. 27, 1955

Dear Click,
Our heartlest congratulations on the Brothernood award
which you so truly have earned.

1nls of necesslty must be a very orief note. Tomorrow
I leave for the Oregon State D.A.R. conference. Chief and
Flora will go with me as honored guests.

Alice Slim Jim Charley was foumd unconscious in the yard
at the foot of Indlan Mountain (where we took her from her visits
out here.) An ambulance was called and she was taken right to
the Hood River Hospital. Sne 1s in a private room and getting

every possible attention, but she can't scem to speak. When
we d1d locate some of her kin and they went in to see her
they sald her tongue was paralgzed. But she 1s taking liquids.
It happened Thursday and she 1s sulll periectly quiet. I'm so
thankful that you made the bast when you did last summer.

About the Yakima L'reaty copy I have here. I'd rather not
part with 1t because it 1s signed by Mr. Lang and 1s the one he
used whlle making the survey. I've come across a lot of material
showlng he came from a line of Quakers. Hls grandtather helped
moved the Malne Indlans west and then went back to check on
them.

But I'll be very glad to have you use it and will send
it up anytine you say.

I'm still not ready to send you a list of source material
here. Since Thomas Vaughan( Lancaster Pollard's successor) and
hls wife were house guests and browsed through a lot of this
material, I've declded it might be of interest to a place like
Yale. Of course, I'd like to see all sorts of things kept in
the west, but under exisiling circumstances I'd be foolish
not to dispose of them to the best advantage. It isn't as
though the eastern libraries don't make copies available.

Mr. Vaughan has written of his concern about a loss
be fire and has suggested that they be allowed to copy a log
of this source material. But I think I‘ll Just walt until I have
time to get 1t listed as you suggested.

Glve Lorralne our neartiest greetings.

Cordlally,

e e e

Of course I'll let you know when there 1s a change in Aliwe's
condition.




Hood Rlver, Oregon
March 31, 1955

Dear Click,

Sorry I haven't written sooner but we've been unusually
busy lately.

Alice Slim Jim Charley has been moved from the Hood
River Hospital to Hanby's Nursing Home near here. Mrs. Moore
and I go In often to see that she 1s getting the best of care.
She seems to know us but she has not recovered from her stroke.
Her tongue 1ls thick and she wlll probably always be a bed
patient.

Nothing has been done for the Celilo group except to
offer them the appralsal figure of the homes on tha 7.
acres. To datejthey haven't signed for that. We. have dians
here, and I've’been up. Mr. Foster, of the Bureau of Indian
Affalrs, phoned before he went to Washington. We should have
gsomethling specific on 1t very soon.

I should think you Washingtonians would get excited
about the Spear Filsh angle. That village will be flooded out
too.

I'11 enclose a copy of a resolution plus a few comments
that I've added for D.A.R. s and others, who have snowed me
under with mail. At least we are getting some interest in
the problem in Washington.

I was up when Senator Morse met with the Celilo people

at The Dalles. 4lso, he stopped in here for coffee and to
discuss the situation with us ( that is off the record!) We
are trylng to do a Job in a non-partis%p way. An approprdation
for housing 1s now coming up that 1s somsored by the Wasco
County Court. We are all getting behifi it. However, I don't
think any of the folk up there are much interested aside from
the Welfare angle. The County Judge 1s afrald they will
become a local problem. But he doesn't know them ag individuals
with needs and problems and a deep love for the "home grounds."
Because nelther of our Portland papers goes 1in for
crusading themes, 1t seems better to try to work direct with
Washilngton.

About the manuscript deal. I haven't heard a word- except
that my agent broke hls leg and has been out of the office for
gome weeks. I understand all publishers are taking a beating
on research or factual books. Unless a book has movie or mag-
azine possiblilities, 1t really has to blde its time. I sat
by Mr. Gupton at the D.A.R. luncheon during the State Conference.
He agreed wilth me enthuslastically when I talked about you and
the quality of your work and its 1mportance, but he didn't give
out a thing about when your book would sece "light of print",
even though I indlcated an Interest in seeing it promoted in
thls area. From what others have told me, it 1s happening to
everyone,(except " the names",)doing the kind of work we both
admire.

I d1d make cgulte a blt when we were able to make research
trips and it was fun because Arch and I shared them. But I
certainly don't want to be away from him, nor do I want to vegete
ate. So next year I'm golng to teach senlor Engldsh at Wy'east,
1t's that blg nlgh school near our home, and hlre household help
to keep up this housel Our greetingdto Lorraine.,, ./ Z




Martha Ferguson McKeown

Route T'wo, Box 352
Hood River, Oregon June 2, 1955

Dear Click,

What a wonderful Job you are doing for your Wadnapums,
Thank you for sending us the clippings.

Also, my appreciation for suggesting me as a speakédr
to the Daughters of Washington Pioneers, I really didn't
know you were responsible urtil after I told of your Wana-
pums being left out of the present settlement!

The Oregon Senators are taking an interest in the home
folk at Celilo, Senator Morse met with a delegation and also
was here at our home on a recent trip, His opening remarks
( note pages 5793~ 5795, Congressional Record, May 23, 1955)
indicate that he does understand the way they feel about
being moved away from the river.

Judge Webber of The Dalles seems to feel the area there
should be made into a park. The great influx of reservation
Indians has brought many problems to his office, Since he
has never been in any homes at Celllo, he does not know the
old people there,

Alice Slim Jim Charley has been moved to the Hanby nursing
home here at Hood River, She 1s a bed patient, seems to know
me when I go in, but shows no signs of recovering from her
stroke. Her legs have drawn up against her body--- 1t 1s a
sad thing to see her linger on this way, She 1s getting wonder-
ful care and seems content, but I hope for her sake that she
can go peacefully and soon.,

I saw Edith Bristol the other day. We discussed you-=
and Drummers and Dreamers, She's a very nice person and
I'm sure she is going to do all she can to give it a
successful launching, Be sure and let me know as plans develop,

As usual, I'm running the proverbial three ring circus,
However, by fall, I expect to get everything under control.

A neighbor is to do my housework, I'll be teaching senior
English at Wy'east ( that big new high school within walking
distance of our ranch.) Then, I hope, that by scheduling my
activities and unloading most of them, I'1l be able to write
about the things that interest me most, I can't go on research
trips like I used to. Arch still has to be very careful., Since
I enjoy teaching and am enthusiastic about both the faculty
and student body at Wy'east, it's a happy solution for us,

Also, I know I'm indebted to you for a letter that came
from Dr. Bibb of Yale, I plan to write him about some of the Lang
material soon.

Do give Laurraine our greetings,

Sincerely,

?ud © SN




Martha Ferguson McKeown

Route Two, Box 352 Feb. 26, 1956
Hood River, Oregon :

Dear Click and Lorraine,

Filrst of all, I want to tell you that our Alice, after
months of silence at the Hanby Nursing Home, has begun to visit
with one of her nurses. When I go down to see her, sheknows me,
Sg¥8 my name, and smiles. She has been a very great care since
her steoke but they keep her clean and comfpptable. I am sorry
for her sake that 1t has gone on like this. It seems a hard
ending for one so free. On the good days, they 1lift her up
and put her in g,yheel chakt. The home is surrounded by beau-
tiful trees andjlooks out at them and at the high cliffs border-
ing the Columbia.

I am goling to Cellilo todaye Nell and I have a lot of good
used clothing for the home folk. It has been decided that the
govermment will build houses at Celilo for the three familtes
who refuse to move away. ( The Jimmy Georges and others have been
in dryshacks there since their homes were burned, during the
relocation of the railroad.) Nothing is being done as yet about
Chlief or the others in the "new" village. There has been no
money settlement @ither,

We have a children's book coming out in April. ¥ Don't
believe the enclosed notice that says"March.") It seems to be
meeting a very real need for factual material at the third and
fourth grade levels. The Portland and Shte Department of Educ-
etioyg administrators have given me a lot of guidance. Also,
we have had pre-test runs in the schools. I was really happy
when one young fellow exclaimed about Archie's pictures," Them's
real Indians! They ain't drawed!"

Some of these days you will be getting a copy. Even if you
don't go for the limited vocabulary material, I know you will
like the pictures.

We are eagerly looking forward to reading your book. I've

always wanted to know more about your Wan-a-pums. Sincerely
M—aé 2




Martha Ferguson McKeown

Route Two, Box 352 Se
Hood River, Oregon pt. 11, 1956

Dear Click,

I'd hoped to get into Portland and see if I could find out
anything about the newspaper situation there but we have been
bogged down here most of the summer. I did get the Chief of the
Fishing Rocks manuscript finished and ware well under way with
another children's volume to give the boys story on a third
grade }level. But aside from keeping an eye on Arch, who is not
at all well, and looking out for Chief Thompson since we moved
him down from Belild to Hanby's Nursing Home June, 10, I have
been a regular Rip Van Winkle.

You asked about the newspaper situation there. The old
eldtors with whom I worked in other years are gone from the
Oregonian, They did run a page of Linda pictures in connection
with our publication date but I was told that was on account of
the pictures. Unless it is Stewart Holbrook, who is on their
staff as a part-time editorial writer, the Oregonlan does very
little with books. I don't see the Joumnal very often but I have
been told that they are best approached with a review copy and
perhaps a Jacket print or a picture or two.

We'll try to get over for your reception at Maryhill. Let
me know more about it.

We had a beautiful card from your wife. She seems to be
really covering Europe this time. Please tell her how much we
enjoyed hearing from her.

School has started. As usual we are knee deep in activities.
Sunday the Bob Bulters from The Dalles and Dr. Osborne of the
Museum at the U. of W. spent the afternoon and eveningi here. They
went down with me to Hanby's to see Alice and Chief. Alice is
still bedfast. But she is clean, fed, and happy as a child. Most
of the time she lives in a dream world, tells me she was cutting
fish yesterday, etc.

I'm wishing you the very best of success with Drummers
and Dreamers. Arch sends greetings. Cordially, ﬁ?/4¢¢=£¢___




REPCRT TO THE SPECIAL CELILO COMMITTER
OREGON HISTORICAL SOCIETY
REGARDING COLUMBIA RIVER INDIANS

October 11, 1956

This report follows the old distinction made by Chief Tommy Kuni Thompson, "thare
are two kinds of Indians - home folk and comers."

Comers come and go from homes on the reservations. They are regarded in the pru-
rent negotiations, being conducted by the Army Engineers, as "wreaty Indians." Their
ancestors moved to reservations, they have come under the supervision and the in-
{luence of the Bureau of Indian Affairs. They have attended the white-man's schools
and adopted many of his ways. By contrast, the remnant bands who come under the in-
fluence of the old long house at Celilo Falls, are still following a culture pattern
that traces back to pre-white man days.

These remnant bands, who acknowledged Chief Tommy Kuni Thompson as their leader,
are descendants of the six tribal groups who did not move to the ijarm Springs reser-
vetione (Note, the fact that these groups did not move to the reservation is well
documented. As a result Chief Thampson and others living in the Celilo area are not
listed on any tribal roll. The same thing is true of the little band of Wanma-puns
at Priest Rapids.)

We have compared our findings with those of Click Relander, whose recent book
DRUMMERS AND DREAMERS, has just been published by Caxton. You will note in that story
the account of the religious persecution of the River People, who refused to accept
the white man's faith. The bird in front of the long house as a messenger to the Ale
mighty, and many other phases of the services at Celilo and Priest Rapids, have be-
come of deep interest to the archeologists now studying the cliff paintings in the
Columbia River Gorge. The use of the sun in these Indian services and the painted
suns on the cliff is only one instance of the many..

Dr+ Douglas Osborne, curator of anthropology at the University of Washington, and
his assistant, Robert Butler, in charge of excavations at Wakemap liound, have been in
our home. Dr. Osborne has found much of significance in Chief Thompson's legends of
the Columbia River Gorge. They have photographed some of the old pieces in our Indian
collection and also expressed delight and surprise that there were still living women
who could make the intricate, corn husk bags. Dr. Osborne had feared that this was a
lost art. He has talked with me about the possibility of making a film of some of the
old weavers and basket makers. Also, he went with us to ¢all on Chief Thampson and
Alice Slim Jim Charley in the Hanby Nursing Home here. (Alice let him feel her heads
She is probably the last living person with an artificially flattened skull =- gub= :
stantiating the theory that the Chinook eulture did extend as far east as the Cascades )

During the recent summer, Dr. Aaron liaters, the geologist from Johns Hopkins
University who spent the summer working in this apea, spent a number of evenings with
us. He states that Chief Thompson's legend of the fall of the bridge of the gods is
the only one that has a basis in fact. Dr. Vaters is convinced that the dam did exist,
that it did have a mud base, etc. ete. In fact, he has convinced us that it is vital
to record this material just as it is being given to me by the old Indians. So hss
Dr. Osborne, for instance he finds the traces of the bear culture at Celilo of definite
significance.




You have doubtless read of the discoveries at the Tenino site on the Oregon shore
between Celilo and The Dalles. Here Dr. Cressman, head of anthropology at the Univer=
sity of Oregon, has discovered what is probably the oldest, continuously occupied spot
on the face of the earth. The daughter of the last Tenino chief now lives at Celilo
Falls. She is of tremendous importance as a link between the presemt and the past.
Although we have known her for many ycars, she has only regently shown me many of the
old pictures and papers that belonged to her people. Also, she has gone to the Tenino
site with us and has allowed us to take pictures of her. Dr. Cressman and Dr. Stern
are coming up this fall to go over some of this material with us. I have sent them
plctures of liinnie Vesley Showaway but I am still a little uncertain about arranging
a meeting with archeologists. She is very bitter about them: The University of Cal-
ifornia exhumed her grandparents and now have them classified as "site 14" in their
collectione

linnie Wlesley Showaway is one of several creative artists living at Celilo Falls.
She makes very beautiful beaded bags for a woman to wear on her belt. Ilnnie i/esley
would like to make and sell "seven belt bags" this winter. Seven is one of the sacred
nunbers that is noted for bringing good luck to an enterprise.

linnie lesley is one of several older women who do not read or write. They lack
a place to buy supplies and a market for their handeraft. Strangely, we find that
the people of the village all seem to have special skills. For instance Jimmy George
makes rawhide drums. lle is a long-haired Indian who is deaf and completely handi-
capped when it comes to reading and writing, but his drums are works of art. /e can
get deer hides for him, but we have not been able to locate juniper wood for the rims.

The fourteen permanent families, who will be living on at Celilo Falls after the
dam is completed, as well as their kinfolk living in scattered shacks up in the foot-
hills, are still practicing arts that may soon be lost. The last woman I saw making
a Klickitat basket was Lucy Cayuse, who lives up Rattlesnake Creek above Husum. I
understand that there are no basket weavers left on the Yakima Indian reservation.

But the River People are still trying to preserve the old handecrafts along with
the old culture patterns and the pre-white man faith. These fish Indians have been
true representatives of individual enterprise. In the old days they were as self-
sufficient as the plant and animal life we now observe in a balanced aguarium.

The old life is gone. But their amazing finger dexterity and many of their
skills remain. lle have problems to solve regarding the procurement of supplies and
the marketing of their native handwork. DBut we can be assured that the women, who
are now drying the last of the salmon from this last salmon run, are eager to use
their skills for the support of their families. There is no appropriation available
or in prospect for the non=reservation Indians at Celilo Falls. They do have housing.
But Chief Thompson is now a welfare case and entitled to a {35 funerale Others are
in a comparable plight.

The \y=ams have always been a proud, independent people. These long-haired,
old-time Indians deserve more than a dole. They deserve a chance to perpetuate the
skills that made them a race of whom we write histories.




Martha Ferguson McKeown

Route T'wo, Box 101
Hood River, Oregon October 15, 1956

Dear Friend Click,

Are we proud of youi Drummers and Dreamers has integrity.
It means a lot to see a person work as you have to do a job
for both the present and the future. And if you hadn't, the
whole story of your wonderful, distinctive Wan-a-pums would have
been lost for all time.

We were so sorry to hear of the death of the last Prophet.
But at least he lived to know that the Wan-a-pums would not be a
completely forgotten people.

Drummers and Dreamers arrived just when I was coming down with
the flu. I have had a real séige and was out of school for awhile.
As a result, I've read and reread your book. Now I am eagerly
looking forward to talking with you about it. Sometime I am going
to share more of my notes on the religion, the same religion, as
I have secn it down in this area. Chief Thompson has often told
me of the schooling he received in the other long house across
the River. He vitited at Pridt Rapids and felt sorry for the
people in many ways. But lhe did see their good fortune in being
free of the " comers". Each year John Whiz seems to introduce
more of the white-man's ways into the long house. I was really
shocked last year to see tables in there. However, the old people
follow the " true faith." The all-night funerals( I have gone to
two recently) are true to the old faith. Chief Thompson was
well enough to cénduct parts of Max Bolse's service. Henry
Thompson and Jimmy George conducted the one for Henry's son.

John Whiz's present wife is the mother of that boy. But she
came with flowers and then did not stay for the night. Since
Chief has been away from the village the missionaries are
making greater inraads there.

Chief's mind 1s very clear. He looks fine but he is a terrible
care. He 1s either in bed or in a wheelchair. The washings are
really a problem. But they love him and he 1s liking Hanbys.

I hope to take him up to Celilo for dinner on Sunday. I'll
take a male nurse and wheel chair along.

Flora is in a swerious condition. I've never seen anyone look
much worse. She is thinking of having surgery after all. But she
is cénvinced she will die during the operation. At present she
is at Celilo. Her sister looks after her. She walks a little but uc
uses a cane.

Arch 18 not at all well. But he is still getiing out with me
on some picture trips. We've been getting some good ones of Celilo
folk- have just finsihed a series for another children's book. This
is the story of a Little Fisherman.

Chief of the Fishlng Rocks 1is growing too. I want to dg
as best I can,the story of the Wy*ams. Also, I am dolng research
on the Cascades at the same time. Aside from teaching, I'm
working harder than I ever have on my writinge

Knowing you---I suppose another book is already in the
making. I've often wondered about the River above Priest Rapids.
The country from Umatilla to the sea has been greatly travelled:
but nothing seems to be known or written about the section to
the northe.

We do appreciate your autograph too. Cordially, =







Martha Ferguson McKeown R. R. #2—Box 352 Hood River, Oregon
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15725 S.E.Dena Rosad
Portland 22, Oregon
March 15, 1965

Dear Flora,

Last night the phone kent ringing from friends who
had seen you on television. I em glad that you are dolng
all that you ca=n te préserve the old ways and get the
long house rebuilt at Celilo. We will try to be at the
Lloyd Center next week ana also sttend the 3slmon Feast
at 001110.

It ie good to know that you are feeling well again.

1 am returning Click Relsnder's letter to you. We
@leo have heard from him. We are sorry to miss the dedlcation
on June 4 but Mr. Dana will be eaet and I will be in school,
our commeéncmeft is not until June 8.

We feel that this is & very fine thing that the P.U.D.

he says 1t would cost & great
bronze. 1 heve always hoped
ould be preserved in this way for nothing
permanente Also, Cliek ie right in that Chief Kuni's
story will resch many more people in this way.

Mershall end I were very surorised and pleased to
récelve such a besutiful card from you and Linda. We spesak
of you both often.

It 1s good to know of Click Relander's happinegs. He soys
his wife 18 a real help meet. He looks forward to having
you at the dedication. I do wish thet we could attend too.
We both believe that évery effort should be made to preserve
torye. Click hes been a good and true

1 know thet anything he does will be with that
thought in his mind.

Alwaye your rriiaig,
y Pl o -
2 7
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Martha Ferguson McKeown
Route Two, Box 352 Nov. 6, 1965
Hood River, Oregon

Dear Click and Lorraine,

At lagt, I take my pen in hends We Jave been our very buslest.
Among other things Aunt Margaret Hawthorne took a tumble and broke
her wrist and got a few brulses, so I've been rushing trays, etc. etc.
Nothing like a few days with two houses. I don't understand people
who want houses at the coast, ifJ ever go @n a vacation I'm going
to want service. -

But anyway, tnings are looking up. I finaliy got the manuseript
on its way, but of course that'sm @ secret because anytning can happen
yet. However, I sort of like it.-- Thanks Lorratne for your comments
on The Trail. Arch thinks THEM WAS THE DAYS 1s my best one. I don't
gver know, all I can ever see is room for improvement.

I have news of a most secret nature. Thanks to Marshall Dana
gome gentlemen left thelr desks last Tuesday and spent a ldng day
in the Gorge. They came nere for us and went over some of my material
and then visted Alice's place, and the homes on the 7.4 acres and the
home folk in Chlef's area. We had Colonel Moorhead, district engineer,
Don Foster, area dlrector from Swan Island, and his assistant, Mr.
Barrett. We were in and out of houses and they saw a lot. I'm more
concerned than I've ever been about the home folks for no plans have
been made, but at any rate they saw the problem and really were
quite concerned.

We've had practically all the Wy-ams down here picking up the
apples in our orchard. That 1s sort of an annual evant, and filnds
us coffee pot in hand, speeding them on thelr way.

Thanks to you and the Catalogue from the Yake Press, I've decided
I do have some good things here and am golng to, in my spare moments,
get them organized thies winter. Speaking of spare moments, I've been
doing a bit of substituting in the local hlgh school. It was an
emergency and I felt kind of happy to be back into it again. I
taught for fourteen years and always liked it a lot.

By all means get all the facts you can about Stocketley. I
haven't had a chance to ask Chief about Mrs. Corbett. I hope you
keep right on dlgging into the Columbla Gorge materlal. There 1s
so much that needs recording and you are doilng a great deal to
preserve historyjnéver heard of a Stocketly plcture. That's a filnd.

Arch still hasn't gotten around to taking the plcture of the
chair from Fort Dalles. I was telling him about it tonight and also
reminding him that we need shots of the bables next door . He hasn't
been too well lately.

We were much interested in your P.U.D. story. We get our power
from a Co-op that buys Bonneville power and save about 20% and also
get 5% interest on the bonds that are all locally owned. I think one
of the things that people held against Cordon was sale of the llne into
gouthern Oregon.

Nell Allen was out Sunday and asked about your publicatlon date.
She was much impressed with the plctures of Alice. Arch had a film
pack in the camera and found he had a couple of more of you two, I'm
sending the negatives. :

I think you are right. I do have some materlial here that has a

real value. If you don't need your Yale catalogue right away, I'a
like to keep it awhile and learn more about organizing things. I'm
now filing ploneer things, and making room to bring out thnat Indlan
stufr. Waen I come to the Lang report I'll see it goes to you right

away. I have a lot of Lang papers that deal with hls years 1in Europe.
Arch sends greetings. Sincerely,
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